

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

Records Classification and Records and Information Management Consultant

RFP Number: 11000-417-002 **Issue Date:** November 24, 2023

Closing Date and Time:	Proposals must be received no later than 2:00 PM
	Newfoundland Time (NT) on December 15,2023



Table of Contents

1.0.	INTRODUCTION	3
2.0.	DEFINITIONS	4
3.0.	AMENDMENT OR CANCELLATION	4
4.0.	RFP CLOSING AND DELIVERY	5
5.0.	SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS	5
6.0.	REQUIRED PROPOSAL FORMAT	
7.0.	QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION	6
8.0.	TERMS AND CONDITIONS	7
9.0.	NO CLAIMS BY PROPONENT	9
10.0.	EVALUATION AND AWARD	9
11.0.	CONFIDENTIALITY	0
12.0.	CONFLICT OF INTEREST1	1
APPEN	NDIX "A" – SCOPE OF WORK1	2
APPEN	NDIX "B" - MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST	5
APPEN	NDIX "C" – PRICING1	6



1.0. INTRODUCTION

1.1. INTENT

The Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador Offshore Petroleum Board (C-NLOPB) is seeking Proposals for the services, on a contractual basis, of a qualified consultant or consulting firm with expertise in Records Classification and Records Information Management (RIM) practices to review and optimize our records classification and information governance practices.

The intent of this RFP is to identify a suitable candidate to assess, update and recommend improvements to our current records classification and update as required internal records management practices within the organization. This includes, but is not limited to the following:

- Reviewing our current classification plan and ensuring it is streamlined for efficiency, simplifies searching/access to records, and is in compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.
- Conducting a comprehensive assessment of our current RIM practices and software.
- Developing a RIM strategy tailored to our organization's needs and goals.
- Reviewing and as required implementing records retention and disposal policies.
- Providing training to our staff on updated RIM recommendations.

This role, which is anticipated to involve a contract of approximately 780 hours are expected to be utilized over approximately a 24 week period. This issuance of this RFP does not in any way bind or commit the C-NLOPB to accepting any of the responses received. Further, any responses received will not attract responsibilities or rights on the part of the C-NLOPB or Respondents under a Contract "A" analysis.

More detail on the opportunity and requirements can be found within this RFP.

1.2. OVERVIEW

The C-NLOPB is responsible, on behalf of the Government of Canada and the Government of Newfoundland and Labrador, for the regulation of petroleum-related activity in the Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador Offshore Area.

The C-NLOPB's authority is derived from the legislation implementing the February 11, 1985 Atlantic Accord between the two governments. The Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador Atlantic Accord Implementation Act and the Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador Atlantic Accord Implementation Newfoundland and Labrador Act provide for joint management of the Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador Offshore Area.

Pursuant to the legislation above, the C-NLOPB regulates in the areas of offshore workplace health and safety, environmental protection, resource management and industrial benefits.

While funded by both the federal and provincial governments, the C-NLOPB operates as an independent entity with the powers of a corporation under the Canada Business Corporations



Act, and is responsible for recovering its costs in regulating offshore petroleum activity from applicants and operators on behalf of both governments.

For additional information, visit the C-NLOPB's website at http://www.cnlopb.ca.

2.0. **DEFINITIONS**

- 2.1. In this RFP, the following definitions apply:
 - (a) "Closing Date and Time" means the date and time as set out on the cover page of this RFP.
 - (b) "C-NLOPB" means the Canada-Newfoundland and Labrador Offshore Petroleum Board.
 - (c) "Contract" means the written agreement between the C-NLOPB and the successful Proponent to perform the Work which is contemplated by this RFP.
 - (d) "Proponent" means a person or entity responding to this RFP with a Proposal.
 - (e) "Proposal" means the Proponent's response to this RFP and includes any attachments.
 - (f) "Request for Proposal" or "RFP" means this document, including any appendices and addenda.
 - (g) "Work" means the Scope of Work attached as Appendix "A" of this RFP.
- 2.2 Headings are for convenience only and do not affect the meaning or interpretation of the sections.
- 2.3 Words in the singular include the plural and vice-versa.

3.0. AMENDMENT OR CANCELLATION

3.1. The C-NLOPB reserves the right to modify the terms of this RFP at any time prior to the Closing Date and Time in its sole discretion. It is the responsibility of the Proponent to monitor the C-NLOPB's website (www.cnlopb.ca) under the heading <u>News/Request for Proposals</u> for any modification to this RFP issued up to, and including, the Closing Date and Time. The C-NLOPB may extend the Closing Date and Time in the event it issues any amendment or modification.



3.2. This RFP may be cancelled in whole or in part at any time by the C-NLOPB in its sole discretion. Any such cancellation shall be without penalty or cost to the CNLOPB.

4.0. RFP CLOSING AND DELIVERY

4.1. One (1) electronic copy of the Proposal, including any supporting documentation, must be received at the following email: <u>information@cnlopb.ca</u> with the cover page of the Proposal being clearly marked as follows:



5.0. SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS

- 5.1. Proponents must comply with the instructions provided in this RFP. Compliant Proposals are those that clearly demonstrate a thorough understanding of this RFP and its stated requirements and criteria.
- 5.2. Proposals must be professional, clear and meet the requirements of this RFP. A thorough response to all mandatory elements is required for the Proposal to be complete. A Proposal risks being judged incomplete and may be disqualified if:
 - instructions are not adhered to;
 - it does not contain sufficient detail;
 - it does not contain all the required information;
 - criteria are not clearly addressed in the format required as described in section 6.0 of this RFP.
- 5.3. Proposals must provide the name, mailing address, email address and telephone number of the Proponent's contact person.
- 5.4. Proposals must be signed by an authorized representative of the Proponent. Unsigned Proposals shall not be considered.



- 5.5. Proposals must include the names of any proposed personnel. Proposals must include the experience of those individuals in undertaking similar work or related services, with sufficient detail to assess their ability to perform the work.
- 5.6. Proposals must provide three references which include the names of the organization, the contact person, telephone number and address and a description of the Work completed for each reference.
- 5.7. Where the Proponent is a corporation, the Proponent may be asked to provide a certificate of good standing from the Registry of Companies for the Province of Newfoundland and Labrador and confirmation it is in good standing with Workplace NL, prior to entering into a Contract if the Proponent is successful.
- 5.8. Proponents may include supporting documentation cross-referenced to their Proposal to assist in the evaluation.
- 5.9. The C-NLOPB reserves the right to print copies of the Proposal from the electronic copy provided by the Proponent in whole or in part.

6.0. REQUIRED PROPOSAL FORMAT

- 6.1. To ensure consistency and fairness, Proponents are to submit Proposals in the following format:
 - (a) Title Page
 - (b) Table Of Contents
 - (c) Executive Summary (a one or two page summary of the key features of the Proposal)
 - (d) Checklist of Mandatory Requirements in the form set out in Appendix "B".
 - (e) Proponent's response (the body of the Proposal, including pricing see Appendix "C")
 - (f) Appendices (if any), tabbed and referenced.

7.0. QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATION

7.1. All inquiries related to this RFP must be directed via email to Trevor Bennett, at the following email address: <u>information@cnlopb.ca</u>. Inquiries must be received at least 5 days prior to Closing Date and Time to allow sufficient response time from the C-NLOPB, otherwise a response cannot be guaranteed.



- 7.2. All questions must include the Proponent's name and address, contact person's name, telephone number and email address, and must identify the specific section and page number of this RFP in question.
- 7.3. To the extent that the C-NLOPB considers that the answer to a question may clarify any aspect of this RFP or assist in the preparation of Proposals by other Proponents, an addenda will be posted on the C-NLOPB's website which will be part of this RFP. The C-NLOPB may not answer a question where it considers the information requested is not required to prepare a response to this RFP, or where the answer to the question posed may be found in this RFP.
- 7.4. The C-NLOPB reserves the right in its sole discretion to clarify any Proposal after the Closing Date and Time by seeking further information from that Proponent, without becoming obligated to clarify or seek further information from any or all other Proponents. However, Proponents are cautioned that any clarifications sought will not be an opportunity to correct or amend the Proposal in any substantive manner.

8.0. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 8.1. Submitting a Proposal indicates acceptance of all the terms and conditions set out in this RFP. Any Proposals received will not attract responsibilities or rights on the part of the C-NLOPB or Proponents under what has been legally interpreted as a *contract "A"/contract "B"* analysis.
- 8.2. The Proponent must submit its complete Proposal before the Closing Date and Time. Proposals received late or not received completely by the Closing Date and Time will not be considered.
- 8.3. Proposals will be marked by their receipt time. In the case of a dispute, the Proposal receipt time as recorded by the C-NLOPB at its location will prevail.
- 8.4. All costs quoted in this RFP must be in Canadian Dollars.
- 8.5. The Proponent shall maintain, for the duration of the Contract, the personnel named in its Proposal to undertake the Work. Any changes to the personnel named in the Proposal requires the consent of the C-NLOPB and must be made to the C-NLOPB in writing, which consent shall be unreasonably withheld.
- 8.6. Notwithstanding section 8.5, the C-NLOPB reserves the right to require a substitution in personnel upon provision of fourteen (14) days' notice to the successful Proponent.



- 8.7. Proponents must be in compliance with all applicable legislative and regulatory requirements, including, but not limited to, all labour, occupational health and safety, and worker's compensation legislation and regulations.
- 8.8. Proponents acknowledge that the C-NLOPB is subject to the *Access to Information Act*, R.S.C., 1985, c. A-1 (as amended from time to time), and that information contained in the Proposal submitted in response to this RFP could be disclosed as a result of the application of that Act.
- 8.9. Proponents shall not use the C-NLOPB's name or logo or make reference to this RFP in any advertising copy or other promotional materials or messages without the CNLOPB's prior written consent.
- 8.10. Proposals must remain open and irrevocable for a period of ninety (90) days from the Closing Date and Time.
- 8.11. All documents, materials, articles and information submitted by the Proponent as part of, or in support of a Proposal shall become upon submission, the property of the C-NLOPB and shall not be returned to the Proponent.
- 8.12. The C-NLOPB makes no representation, warranty or guarantee as to the accuracy of the information contained in this RFP. Any quantities shown, data, or opinion contained in this RFP, are estimates only and are for the sole purpose of indicating to Proponents the general scale and Work that may be required.
- 8.13. Proponents shall not engage in any form of political or other lobbying whatsoever with respect to this RFP or otherwise attempt to influence the outcome of the selection process. In the event of any such activity, the C-NLOPB, at its sole discretion, may at any time, but is not required to, reject any response by that Proponent without further consideration, and either terminate that Proponent's continued participation in the selection process or impose conditions on that Proponent's continued participation that the C-NLOPB, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate.
- 8.14. Proponents are solely responsible, and without recourse to the C-NLOPB for any expenses a Proponent may incur in preparing and submitting a Proposal and for its participation in this RFP process including, but not limited to, providing additional information that may be requested by the C-NLOPB.
- 8.15. Irregularities or errors of a non-material nature in a Proposal may be waived by the C-NLOPB at its sole discretion.
- 8.16. Notwithstanding any other section of this RFP, the C-NLOPB reserves the right to reject any and all Proposals received in response to this RFP. Reasons for rejection include, but are not limited to, the following:



- (a) Proposals received after the Closing Date and Time;
- (b) Incomplete Proposals;
- (c) Proposals containing qualifications or conditions added by the Proponent that are unacceptable to the C-NLOPB in its sole discretion;
- (d) Proposals which do not meet the requirements specified in this RFP.
- 8.17. By submitting a Proposal, the Proponent agrees, that should the Proposal be chosen, to enter into a Contract with the C-NLOPB on substantially the same terms and conditions set out in the C-NLOPB Contract and such other terms and conditions to be finalized to the satisfaction of the C-NLOPB, if applicable unless otherwise agreed between the C-NLOPB and the Proponent. In the event the Proponent has a standard contract and the terms which are equivalent to the C-NLOPB's contract, the C-NLOPB would be willing to review same.
- 8.18. Any conflicts, discrepancies errors or omissions between this RFP, the Proposal the Contract, and any Schedules to the Contract, shall be resolved in the following order of priority:
 - (a) the Contract;
 - (b) the Schedules to the Contract;
 - (c) this RFP; and
 - (d) the Proposal.

9.0. NO CLAIMS BY PROPONENT

- 9.1. The Proponent, by participating in the process outlined in this RFP document, consents to the procedures as described in this RFP, and the Proponent acknowledges and agrees that the C-NLOPB will not be liable to any Proponent for any claims, direct or indirect, whether for costs, expenses, losses or damages, or loss of anticipated profits, or for any other matter whatsoever incurred by the Proponent:
 - (a) in preparing and providing a Proposal;
 - (b) negotiations with the C-NLOPB, if any;
 - (c) non-acceptance or rejection of a Proposal; and
 - (d) cancellation of this RFP without award.

10.0. EVALUATION AND AWARD

10.1. The successful Proponent will be notified in writing by the C-NLOPB and notification of the outcome may be posted on the C-NLOPB's website. The C-NLOPB reserves the right to award to a Proponent whose Proposal may not represent the lowest overall cost. If a



Contract results from this RFP process, it shall be awarded to the qualified Proponent whose Proposal is the most acceptable to the C-NLOPB in its sole discretion. Issuing this RFP implies no obligation on the CNLOPB to accept any Proposal in whole or in part.

- 10.2. The successful Proponent will be selected in the sole discretion of the C-NLOPB, based on the Mandatory Requirements in Appendix "B" and additional criteria specific to the Work, including, but not limited to:
 - (a) ability to meet and understand C-NLOPB requirements in this RFP. Proposals will be evaluated based on the strength of understanding of C-NLOPB Work requirements as demonstrated in the Proposal;
 - (b) demonstrated experience with similar projects;
 - (c) overall cost of the Proposal (including proposed pricing and any other costs to be incurred by the C-NLOPB);
 - (d) ability to meet C-NLOPB timelines for starting and completing the Work;
 - (e) project approach and plan;
 - (f) innovation or creativity;
 - (g) experience and expertise in records and information management; and
 - (h) references and past performance.

The criteria above are not necessarily listed in order of priority.

- 10.3 In evaluating responses to this RFP, first consideration shall be given by the C-NLOPB to proposals which:
 - (a) provide employment for individuals resident in the Province, and
 - (b) offer services provided from within the Province / goods manufactured in the Province, where those services and goods are competitive in terms of fair market price, quality and delivery.

11.0. CONFIDENTIALITY

11.1. The C-NLOPB will, to the extent it reasonably can and subject to its obligations under law, hold confidential any information labelled as confidential provided to it by Proponents. If for any reason information provided to the C-NLOPB should not be disclosed because of its sensitive nature, then it is incumbent upon the Proponent when supplying the information to make this clear and to specify the reasons for the information's sensitivity.



- 11.2. The successful Proponent and its respective staff may be required to sign a formal confidentiality/non-disclosure agreement relating to the protection of confidential information of the C-NLOPB to which they may have access to during the course of the Contract.
- 11.3. The successful Proponent shall not disclose or make public any statements or material acquired or produced in relation to this RFP or any subsequent Contract without the prior written permission of the C-NLOPB.

12.0. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

12.1. Proponents shall disclose any information that might be relevant to an actual or potential conflict of interest. Proponents must warrant that, at the date of the acceptance of their Proposal, no conflict of interest exists or is likely to arise in the performance of their obligations under the Contract. If during the term of the Contract, a conflict of interest or a risk of a conflict of interest arises, the Proponent shall notify the C-NLOPB immediately in writing of that conflict or risk.



APPENDIX "A" – SCOPE OF WORK

1.0 PROJECT OVERVIEW

Appropriate management of information and records is a critical component of the CNLOPB's mandate and an area which impacts all aspects of the organization's operations. The purpose of the project is to review our current RIM (Records and Information Management) classification plan while also assessing RIM software and practices. This project serves the critical purpose of enhancing an organization's information management and records governance strategies. By reviewing the existing classification plan, the project aims to ensure that records and information are structured effectively, enabling easy retrieval, compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, and the preservation of vital data. Simultaneously, evaluating RIM software and practices provides an opportunity to modernize and streamline information management systems, identifying potential inefficiencies and gaps. This holistic approach seeks to optimize records handling, minimize risks, and enhance the overall efficiency and reliability of our organization's information management processes, ultimately contributing to improved decision-making and organizational effectiveness. This project is expected to commence in Q1 of 2024 and be completed within 24 weeks.

2.0 To obtain this desired end state it has been identified that the services of a records and information management consultant are required to work with our subject matter experts. It is expected that the contract with the consultant resulting from this RFP will be for a period of approximately 780 hours, and will require the following deliverables:

Deliverable for Stage 1: Project Planning and Management

The deliverable for Stage 1, has approximately 90 hours allotted to set out a work plan with milestones and associated timelines for the deliverables for the other stage of the project as well as regular meetings, issues identification and resolution. The 90 hours may not be continuous as subject matter experts may be engaged in other priority tasks. Stage 1 will include an estimate of time to complete the necessary work for each of the components for the following deliverables.

Deliverables for Stage 2: Landscape Assessment

The deliverable for Stage 2 will require the Consultant to be responsible for:

• Reviewing legislation, regulations, and other related documents to understand the records management landscape within which the C-NLOPB operates.



- Garner an understanding of the records under our management, in both physical and digital formats, along with records databases and various types of documentation.
- Conducting an assessment of the existing records classification plan which entails a methodical review of the organization's approach to categorizing and structuring its records.
- Reviewing the current electronic data and information management system, and draft records retention plan.
- Reviewing current records and information management policies, procedures and practices.
- Developing an understanding of corporate-wide records and information management process and policy opportunities for improvement through information gathering mechanisms such as interviews with staff and subject-matter experts in each department.

The expected duration to complete Stage 2 deliverables is approximately 240 hours. At the discretion of the C-NLOPB this timeline may be mutually extended or amended if the C-NLOPB deems it necessary.

Deliverables for Stage 3: Reporting

- Develop new or update the current records classification plan to ensure that it reflects the main business functions for each department and represents an all-inclusive corporate-wide plan (include classification titles, scope notes, recommended numbering).
- Provide recommendations in a transition plan for the new (or any updates to the current) classification plan that should be implemented, including roles and responsibilities for staff, time and resources required for implementation, approach for records not classified, and transition for those under the old classification system (including a migration strategy if this is recommended).
- Prepare a report outlining any gaps identified between ISO standards, and any generally accepted records and information management practices, and the current records and information management environment at C-NLOPB. The report should include steps required to close any identified.
- Provide a report regarding the current draft records retention plan, and assess its compliance with legal requirements, ensuring the proper categorization, storage and disposal of documents, and efficient information governance.
- Provide senior management a presentation summarizing the results of the analysis and go forward plan.
- Provide staff with presentation outlining proposed classification changes, procedures for implementation, and overview of schedule developed for the C-NLOPB through this process.



• Provide a training session for Information Resources and key administrative personnel on the new/updated records and information management classification plan including, and how changes will be implemented. This is to be delivered after acceptance of final report, date to be agreed by both parties.

The expected duration to complete Stage 3 deliverables is approximately 450 hours.



APPENDIX "B" - MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS CHECK LIST

Check Box to be completed and included with the Proposal.

The Proposal package contains one (1) complete electronic copy of the RFP Proposal and related documentation	
The Proposal was delivered in full on or before the Closing Date and Time	
The Proposal is signed by an authorized representative of the Proponent	
The Proponent has read and understood the RFP and the C-NLOPB's requirements and it's presentation is clear, professional and complete	



APPENDIX "C" – PRICING

The Proposal shall contain a fixed hourly rate for the Proponent's Work [OR] [for each of the Proponent's personnel], including an estimate of the time required to complete the Work. Such Fixed Hourly Rate(s) are inclusive of all fees, expenses and incidentals to perform the Work as described in this RFP. Prices quoted must be in Canadian Dollars, exclusive of HST.

Proposals must provide Fixed Hourly Rates for the personnel identified to be assigned the Work under the following situations:

- (a) normal Business Hours (onsite)
- (b) normal Business Hours (remote)
- (c) work outside normal Business Hours

The C-NLOPB's Business Hours are 8:30 am to 5:00 pm, Monday to Friday.